


 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346π2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

April 22, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 
5) PUBLIC HEARING_______________________________________________________________________ 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: City Council or Planning Commission will take the following actions when considering a matter scheduled for hearing:

1. Open the public hearing 
2. Presentation by staff 
3. Council comments and questions 
4. Presentation, when applicable, by applicant or appellant
5. Accept public testimony 
6. Council comments and questions 
7. When applicable, applicant or appellant rebuttal period
8. Close public hearing. (No public comment is taken after the hearing is closed.)
9. City Council action 

Public hearings that are continued will be announced. The continued public hearing will be listed on a subsequent Council Meeting Agenda and posting 
of that agenda will serve as notice. 

The City Council encourages the participation of the public. To ensure the expression of all points of view, and to maintain the efficient conduct of the City’s 
business, members of the public who wish to address the Council shall do so in an orderly manner. The audience is asked to refrain from positive or negative 
actions such as yelling, clapping or jeering that may intimidate other members of the public from speaking.  Members of the public wishing to speak may 
request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand, and stepping to the podium when requested to do so. 

Recess Meeting as City Council and Convene as Planning Commissionπ The council will convene as the Planning 
Commission for the purpose of considering approval and making a recommendation on Agenda Item 5A 
 

5A.  Design Review Permit No. DRP‐SP‐01‐2014 for Dollar General, a Retail Establishment; and 
Consideration of Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project  
STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager and Jessica Hankins, Environmental Planner  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: PLANNING COMMISSION π Adopt Resolution No. 13π2015:  Approving Design 
Review Permit No. DRPπSPπ01π2014 for Dollar General, and recommending that the City Council Certify 
and Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project. 
 

Reconvene as City Councilπ The council will reπconvene as the City Council for the remainder of the meeting. 
 

5B.  Consideration of Mitigated Negative Declaration for Dollar General Project No. DRP‐SP‐01‐2014 at 951 
S. Auburn Street 
STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager and Jessica Hankins, Environmental Planner  

 RECOMMENDED  ACTION:  Adopt Resolution No. 14π2015: Certifying And Adopting The Negative 
Declaration for Design Review Permit No. DRPπSPπ01π14 Dollar General Project 

 

6) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________ 
6A. Placer County Sheriff Contract Upcoming Renewal Information 
  STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Discuss and Direct Staff as Appropriate 
 

7) ADJOURNMENT________________________________________________________________________ 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and posted this agenda 

at Colfax City Hall and Colfax Post Office. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 



bigdayofgiving.org

BIG Day of Giving is brought to you by:

From midnight to midnight on May 5th, go to 

bigdayofgiving.org 

…and many other generous donors.



City of Colfax 1
City Council Minutes April 8, 2015
 

City of Colfax 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting of Wednesday, April 8, 2015 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

 
1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER
 
The Regular Council meeting was called to order at 7:02 PM by Mayor Douglass.  
1A. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Jim Fletter, Colfax Project Engineer. 
1B. Roll Call:  

Councilmembers present:  Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, and Parnham 
1C. Approval of Agenda: 
City Manager Miller requested that Council consider Item 2E separately from the Consent Agenda and 
postpone Item 6D for a future meeting due to contractual negotiations.  He also mentioned that the video 
server was not working. 

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Delfino, the City Council 
approved the agenda as amended. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, and Parnham 
NOES:   None 

 
2 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
2A.  Minutes of City Council Meeting of March 11, 2015 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 11, 2015. 
2B. Cash Summary Report February 2015 

Recommendation:  Receive and File. 
2C. Master Agreement for Caltrans State-Funded Transportation Projects 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 6-2015 Authorizing the execution of a Master 
Agreement administering an Agency-State Agreement for State-Funded Projects, Agreement No. 
00452S, and Authorizing the City Manager to execute the Agreement and all related documents 
to the Agreement, on the City’s behalf. 

2D. Mosquito and Vector Control Awareness Week 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 7-2015: Recognizing West Nile Virus and Mosquito 
and Vector Control Awareness Week 2015. 

 
On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, seconded by Councilmember Delfino, the City Council 
approved items 2A, 2B, 2C, and 2D of the Consent Calendar.  Item 2E was pulled for discussion. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, and Parnham 
NOES:   None 

 
2E. Award Construction Contract for the Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding, Project 

No. 14-01 
 Recommendation:  1) Adopt Resolution No. 8-2015 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Construction Contract with Hudson Excavation, Inc. in the amount of $189,473.00 and approve 
Construction Budget of $201,026 as a contingency; 2) Authorize the City Manager to enter into 
reimbursement Agreements with PG&E, Verizon and Wave Communication. 





City of Colfax 3
City Council Minutes April 8, 2015
 

buses which can heat up tremendously and cause fires.  These rules directly affected several local 
business owners including Penny Todd.  Requested that the City look into this regulation as a 
safety hazard. 

 At the request of Mayor Douglass, Councilmember Delfino explained the Kiwanis program 
which encourages middle school students to maintain good grades.  As part of the reward, the 
students are given a certificate from the Mayor at a luncheon provided for them. 

 Asked if Land Use Attorney Barnes will be retained for future Land Use issues and stated this 
would be his preference. 

Councilmember Harvey 
 Spoke about the Governor’s new water restrictions.  Potable water cannot be used on 

construction sites.  He suggested that the City look into the feasibility of selling treated water to 
construction companies.  City Manager Miller stated that this is a great idea and he will be 
attending a Water Grant Funding Workshop which could lead to funds for appropriate 
infrastructure to develop this revenue stream.  Councilmember Harvey mentioned that the City 
should check the EIR requirements for water release into the watershed.  City Attorney Cabral 
will review to determine the requirements.  Councilmember Hesch reminded Staff to also look 
into using grey water for irrigation.  City Manager Miller stated that this is expensive but that 
grants may be available. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham 
 Attended the Mosquito Abatement Board meeting with nothing to report concerning Colfax. 
 Will attend a Mosquito Abatement planning session next week. 
 Attended a seminar in Grass Valley regarding research with algae and water treatment.  Some 

very interesting topics were covered. 
 Met with City Manager Miller and Placer County personnel at a decommissioned wastewater 

treatment plant to look into the feasibility of obtaining some hand-me-down equipment for the 
City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Mayor Douglass 
 Attended the Economic Board Summit Breakfast meeting with nothing to report directly 

affecting Colfax.   
 Attended the Project Go meeting. 
 Met with the Mayor of Hilo, Hawaii while on vacation who jokingly suggested California build a 

pipeline from Oregon to get us through the drought. 
 

3B. City Operations Updates – City Staff 
City Manager Miller  

 Met the new station commander of the Gold Run CHP office, David Jenkins.  Captain Jenkins 
plans to attend a Council meeting when he is able. 

 Caltrans has gone out for bids for the STAA Route.  Caltrans apparently will award the contract 
to Baldwin and construction will begin soon.  The state is investing over a million dollars in 
Colfax infrastructure, which we appreciate. 

 Due to the Code Enforcement letters sent out last month, the owners of the old Dingus McGees 
building have decided to demolish the building.  They have requested a preservation of their 
sewer charges without impact fees if they build within 3-5 years.  Staff will bring an agreement 
back for Council’s approval. 

 Staff has spoken with several residents and merchants regarding improving the look of historic 
downtown by restoring the upper facades of the buildings and all have been supportive. 

3 of 6















ITEM 2B





ITEM 2B
6 of 10





ITEM 2B



ITEM 2B



ITEM 2B









2 of 9







5 of 9





7 of 9









Public Hearing Date 5/27/2015

Compile delinquent report - Secured and Unsecured 5/1/2015

City send Delinquent Letter to affected property owners 5/1/2015 Same letter as last year 

Public Hearing Notice - Colfax Record 5/7/2015 Must be noticed for two consecutive weeks - same notice as last year

Public Hearing Notice - Colfax Record 5/14/2015

Hold Public Hearing 5/27/2015

1st Reading of Ordinance 5/27/2015

2nd Reading of and Adoption of Ordinance 6/10/2015

Resolutions to place delinquents on Tax Rolls 6/10/2015 Council confirms sewer and garbage reports and placing liens

Recology to submit draft letter to City for review 5/1/2015 Must specify time of lien hearing

Recology submits report to City for Garbage delinquents 5/14/2015

Recology sends letter prior to lien hearing date 5/14/2015 Hearing date tentatively to be same day as Public Hearing

Hold Lien hearing 5/27/2015 This is not public hearing for Council…..can be held during day

Submit unsecured amounts to County 6/26/2015 This is required submittal date provided by County

Submit Secured amounts to County 7/24/2015 This is required submittal date provided by County

City of Colfax - 2015-2016 Auditor Direct Charges

Schedule of Activities for Collecting Delinquent Sewer and Garbage Charges on Annual Tax Rolls



 

1 

 

 

 

FOR THE APRIL 22, 2015 COUNCIL/PLANNING 
COMMISSION MEETING 

 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Staff , Jessica Hankins, Environmental Planner  

DATE: April 14, 2015 

SUBJECT: Design Review Permit No. DRP-SP-01-2014 for Dollar General, a Retail 
Establishment; and Consideration of Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UNπFUNDED AMOUNT: N/A FROM FUND:  N/A 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS:  PLANNING COMMISSION - Adopt Resolution No. 13-2015:  
Approving Design Review Permit No. DRP-SP-01-2014 for Dollar General, and recommending 
that the City Council Certify and Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project.

 

PROJECT LOCATION, SURROUNDING LAND USES AND SETTING:  951 South Auburn Street, 
Assessor’s Parcel No. 100-230-027, City of Colfax, Placer County, California.  The project site is located 
in the commercial retail corridor along the highway, with vacant lots and retail businesses to the north and 
south, Interstate Highway 80 to the East, and developed residential to the west. 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Applicant (s):   Joshua Simon and Dan Biswas representing Dollar General 
Owner:     Raymond Wong 
Project Location:       951 South Auburn St., Colfax, CA 
Land Use (existing):   Existing partially graded vacant parcel 
Assessor’s Parcel No:  100-230-027 
Zoning District:  Commercial Retail 
GP Designation:  Commercial 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE: This meeting has been noticed in accordance with the requirements of 
California Planning and Zoning Law, Title 7, Chapter 65000, Government Code, as amended. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  #DRP-SP-01-14/Dollar General Design Review. 
This project is a proposal to construct a 9,100-square-foot building for a Dollar General retail store with 
associated parking (31 stalls), landscaping, lighting, signage, storm drainage, and other infrastructure on a 
Commercial-Retail zoned 1.2-acre lot in the City of Colfax, outside the City’s historic district.  The 
Commercial Retail (CR) zone allows the proposed use.  The project requires a Design Review Permit 
including architectural, site plan and signage review.   

1 of 71









 

5 

 

PLAN REVIEW BY INTERESTED OUTSIDE AGENCIES: 

The following outside parties were noticed.  Minimal comments were received and are attached.  All 
comments are addressed in the plan review and building permit process, and those comments not 
addressed by the mitigations are conditions of the proposed approval. 
 

Caltrans, District 3 
Colfax City Engineer 
Colfax Community Services Director 
Colfax Elementary School District 
Colfax Fire Chief & Marshal 
Colfax High School 
Colfax Sheriff’s Deputy 
Department of Fish & Wildlife Services (CA DFG) 
Pacific Gas & Electric 
Placer County Air Pollution Control District 
Placer County Community Development Resource Agency (Planning Department) 
Placer County Environmental Health Department 
Placer County Flood Control and Water Control District 
Placer County Public Works Department 
Placer County Water Agency 
Placer Union High School District 
Regional Water Quality Control Board 
       State of California State Clearinghouse and Planning Unit  
Recology 
United Auburn Indian Community Tribal Office 
United States Army Corps of Engineers 
United States Post Office 
Verizon Communications 
Wave Broadband 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 
Attached is the Initial Study and proposed Mitigation Monitoring Plan for the project.  All of the 
following environmental factors have been considered.  Those environmental factors checked below 
would be potentially affected by this project, and involved at least one impact that is "Less Than 
Significant with Mitigation" as indicated by the detailed analysis in the Initial Study.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 of 71







City of Colfax 1 Resolution No. 13-2015 

 

City of Colfax 
Planning Commission 

 

Resolution Ο 13-2015 
 

APPROVING DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT NO. DRP-SP-01-2014 FOR DOLLAR 
GENERAL, AND RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL CERTIFY AND 

ADOPT THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE PROJECT 
 

Whereas, the City of Colfax received Planning Application DRP-SP-01-2014 for 
design review for the Dollar General Project located at 951 S. Auburn Street in the City of 
#ÏÌÆÁØ ɉÔÈÅ Ȱ0ÒÏÊÅÃÔȱ); and 
 

Whereasȟ ÔÈÅ #ÉÔÙ ÏÆ #ÏÌÆÁØ 0ÌÁÎÎÉÎÇ #ÏÍÍÉÓÓÉÏÎ ɉȰ#ÏÍÍÉÓÓÉÏÎȱɊ ÈÅÌÄ Á ÄÕÌÙ-
nÏÔÉÃÅÄ ÐÕÂÌÉÃ ÈÅÁÒÉÎÇ ÏÎ ÔÈÅ 0ÒÏÊÅÃÔȭÓ ÁÐÐÌÉÃÁÔÉÏÎ ÏÎ !ÐÒÉÌ ςςȟ ςπρυȠ ÁÎÄ 

 

Whereas, the Commission has reviewed and considered the staff report, any and all 
written comments received during the public review process, and any and all oral or 
written comments submitted at the public hearing, and finds: 
 

a. The Project as approved allows beneficial use to be made of the site for 
development, preserves and accentuates the natural features of the property, such 
as open space, topography, trees, wetlands and water courses, and provides 
adequate drainage for the Project. 
 

b. The Project site design as approved provides access, vehicle parking, vehicle, 
pedestrian and bicycle circulation, loading areas, landscaping and irrigation and 
lighting which results in a safe, efficient, and harmonious development and which is 
consistent with the applicable goals, policies and objectives set forth in the general 
plan and the design guidelines established for that zone district.  
 

c. The building design, including the materials, colors, height, bulk, size and relief, and 
the arrangement of the structures on the site, as approved is harmonious with other 
development and buildings in the vicinity and which is consistent with the 
applicable goals, policies and objectives set forth in the general plan and the design 
guidelines established for that zone district. 

 

d. The design of the public services, as approved, including, but not limited to trash 
enclosures and service equipment are located so as not to detract from the 
appearance of the site, and are screened appropriately and effectively using 
construction materials, colors and landscaping that are harmonious with the site 
and the building designs.  
 

 





City of Colfax 3 Resolution No. 13-2015 

 

B. The Planning Commission has reviewed and considered the draft MND, 
comments received during the public review period, and all relevant documents in the 
record prior to making a recommendation to the City Council on the Project. 

 

C. The MND for the Project adequately describes the environmental impacts of 
the Project.  On the basis of the whole record before it, the Planning Commission finds that 
there is no substantial evidence that the Project, as mitigated, will have a significant effect 
on the environment beyond those identified in the MND.   

 

D. The MND has been completed in compliance with CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines.    

 
E. The MND is complete and adequate and reflects the Planning Commission's 

independent judgment and analysis as to the environmental effects of the Project. 
 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of Colfax: 
 

1. Planning Application Design Review Permit No. DRP-SP-01-2014 for design 
review for the Dollar General Project located at 951 S. Auburn Street in the City of Colfax is 
hereby approved subject to Project conditions and findings. 

 

2. Based on the above findings,  the Planning Commission finds that the Project 
qualifies for a mitigated negative declaration and recommends that the City Council certify 
and adopt  the Project Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 

Passed and Adopted this 22th day of April 2015 by the following roll call vote: 
 

Ayes:  Planning Commissioners:    
Noes:     
Absent:   
Abstain:  

 
 
                                                                

___________________________________ 
      Kim Douglass, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 
 

 













Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 2 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

between Whitcomb Avenue and Mink Creek Drive in the City of Colfax. See Appendix A for a location 

map and Appendix B for a site plan. 

 

Other Permits Which May Be Necessary: Based on initial comments received, the following permits 

may be required from the designated agencies: 

 

1. Grading and building permits ï City of Colfax Building Department 

2. City road encroachment permit ï City of Colfax Public Works Department   

3. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan ï Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 

4. Dust control permit ï Placer County Air Pollution Control District 

 

Project Location and Surrounding Land Uses 

The 1.2-acre project site (APN 100-230-027) is located at 951 South Auburn Street between Whitcomb 

Avenue and Mink Creek Drive in the City of Colfax. The site is bounded by South Auburn Street on the 

east, undeveloped parcels to the north and south, and Mink Creek, a residential subdivision, to west. 

Interstate 80 is located approximately 300 feet east of the project site and runs parallel to South Auburn 

Street. A large commercial center is located approximately 400 feet to the north (with two intervening 

parcels between the proposed development and the existing commercial development). Two parcels to the 

south is a carwash. The nearest sensitive uses include a charter school approximately 500 feet to the south 

and residences immediately to the west.  

The City of Colfax zones the site Commercial-Retail (per the 2002 City Zoning Map), and the site has a 

General Plan designation of Commercial. Lands to the north and south are also zoned Commercial-Retail 

and designated Commercial, similar to the site, while properties immediately west are zoned for medium-

density residential development.  

Elevations on the site range from 2,305 feet at the street to 2,362 feet at the northern boundary. Slopes 

within the proposed parking area average 30 percent, while slopes within the proposed building area 

average 26 percent. The site was previously been logged and disturbed in the late 1980s, and again in the 

1990s with the development of the Mink Creek subdivision on the ridge above the project site.  

 

Project Description 

The proposed project includes the construction of a 9,100-square-foot Dollar General retail store and 

associated parking, landscaping, lighting, signage, storm drainage, and infrastructure on a 1.2-acre lot in 

the City of Colfax outside the Cityôs historic district. The City of Colfax is the lead agency and has 

jurisdiction over the project. A total of 31 parking stalls, including 2 ADA stalls and 4 clean air vehicle 

stalls, are proposed at the front or eastern side and northern side of the building, with primary access from 

South Auburn Street. Loading/receiving areas as well as a trash enclosure are proposed on the siteôs 

northern boundary. Elevations for the project propose a beige stucco exterior with parapets and stone 

veneer wainscot on the front and partially on the sides of the building, mansard partially along the front, 

and khaki cement lap siding on the front gabled entry. The main part of the structure has a flat white roof, 

while the gabled entry and awning are roofed with bronze metal seam roofing.  

 

The project includes a sign plan, lighting plan, and landscaping plan. The sign plan proposes two signs, a 

pole-mounted sign and a wall-mounted sign. The pole-mounted sign is a 21-foot tall (including post), 

lighted cabinet sign with black letters on a yellow background. The sign proper is proposed at 16 feet 

across by 6 feet tall and would be placed on the street frontage perpendicular to the street. The wall-

mounted sign would be placed on the front exterior (southeast elevation) of the structure on the gabled 

entry and is proposed at 3 feet, 9 inches tall by 26 feet in width.  

 

The lighting plan proposes three pole-mounted recessed LED can lights for the parking lot, two double 

lights on single poles in the parking area, and one single light and a single pole for the sidewalk traversing 

the parking lot entry.  

16 of 71





Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 4 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

INITIAL STUDY AND CHECKLIST 

 

Introduction 

This checklist is to be completed for all projects that are not exempt from environmental review under the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The information, analysis and conclusions contained in 

the checklist are the basis for deciding whether an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) or Negative 

Declaration is to be prepared.  If an EIR is determined to be necessary based on the conclusions of the 

Initial Study, the checklist is used to focus the EIR on the effects determined to be potentially significant. 

This Initial Study uses the following terms to describe the level of significance of adverse impacts. These 

terms are defined as follows. 

 

¶ No Impact:  An impact that would result in no adverse changes to the environment.   

¶ Less than Significant Impact: An impact that is potentially adverse but does not exceed the 

thresholds of significance as identified in the impact discussions.  Less than significant impacts 

do not require mitigation. 

¶ Less than Significant with Mitigation: An environmental effect that may cause a substantial 

adverse change in the environment without mitigation, but which is reduced to a level that is less 

than significant with mitigation identified in the Initial Study. 

¶ Potentially Significant Impact: An environmental effect that may cause a substantial adverse 

change in the environment; either additional information is needed regarding the extent of the 

impact to make the significance determination, or the impact would or could cause a substantial 

adverse change in the environment.  A finding of a potentially significant impact would result in 

the determination to prepare an EIR. 

 

 

1. AESTHETICS 

 

Existing Setting: The project site is approximately 300 feet west of Interstate 80 and is situated on the 

frontage road of South Auburn Street, which is developed with commercial uses approximately 400 feet 

to the north. Parcels immediately north and south of the subject parcel are undeveloped. The Mink Creek 

residential development is located to the west on a small bluff overlooking the project site. The nearest 

sensitive uses include a school approximately 400 feet to the south and the residences immediately to the 

west. The property is visible from both the north and south approaches, as well as from Interstate 80. The 

subject parcel is situated on a hillside facing east with oak woodlands and low-elevation montane forest 

plant communities common to the area. Slopes on site are generally 20 to 30 percent, with some areas of 

slope greater than 30 percent.  

 

Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant 

with 

Mitigation 

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

a. Result in demonstrable, negative, aesthetic 

effects on scenic vistas or views open to the public? 
  V  

b. Substantially damage scenic resources, 

including but not limited to trees, rock 

outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state 

scenic highway? 

   V 

c. Substantially degrade the existing visual 

character or quality of the site and its surroundings? 
  V  

d. Create a new source of substantial light or 

glare, which would adversely affect day or 

nighttime views in the area? 

  V  

e. Create a visually incompatible structure within    V 



Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 5 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant 

with 

Mitigation 

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

a designated historic district? 

 

Impact Discussion 1a & 1c: The building presents a beige stucco exterior with a flat white roof, as well as 

a projecting front that utilizes a cement lap siding and bronze metal seam roofing, and the main part of the 

building incorporates stone veneer parapets. The project currently proposes a pole that is lit from the 

interior. Other proposed lighting is screened and blends with the architectural features of the proposed 

structure. This project is consistent in scale, slope cut, and design with other nearby commercial 

developments and will undergo Design Review as part of the planning approval.  

 

Approximately 15 to 16 of the siteôs oak trees would be removed with the project, but these will require 

one-for-one mitigation replanting onsite or within the City of Colfax.  This site layout will therefore 

minimize the aesthetic impacts of the project, along with the landscape plan discussed below.   

 

The parking ordinance (Chapter 17.108) requires that ñall unused right-of-way between the public street 

and the parking lot shall be landscaped and maintained by the property owner.ò The project includes a 

landscaping plan that would provide a 10-foot buffer on both road frontages and along the north and south 

project boundaries, but does not include landscaping within the unused right-of-way. Additionally, Placer 

County Water Agency, in a letter dated March 25, 2014, indicated that a drought has been declared, and 

new landscaping may be prohibited during a drought.1 Should a drought declaration be in place during the 

landscaping installation phase of this project, an impact could occur in terms of aesthetics of the site, as 

well as inconsistency with the Municipal Code, which requires landscaping. These aesthetic impacts and 

inconsistency with the Municipal Code are addressed in Mitigation Measure 1A.  

 

The project will be required to be consistent with the Cityôs Municipal Code prior to project approval 

and/or construction.2 The project design is consistent with other nearby commercial developments, and 

the project is not visible from the street frontages within the Mink Creek residential development. This 

impact is therefore considered less than significant with mitigation.  

 

Impact Discussion 1b:  According to the California Scenic Highway Mapping System, Interstate 80 

through Colfax is neither eligible for designation as a state scenic highway, nor is designated as such; 

therefore, there would be no impact related to damaging scenic resources on a state scenic highway.3 

 

Impact Discussion 1d:  The nearest residential uses sensitive to light and glare in the project area are 

located within the Mink Creek residential development immediately west of the project site. However, 

these homes are located on a bluff overlooking the project site, and all lighting is required by the Cityôs 

Municipal Code to be shielded and directed downward to prevent the light source or lens from being 

visible from adjacent properties and roadways. The residences would thus not be impacted by lighting 

from the proposed project, and this impact is considered less than significant. 

 

Impact Discussion 1e:  There is no historic zoning designation in place on or in close proximity to this 

project site.  The proposed project will result in no impact on any designated historic areas. 

                                                      

1 Placer County Agency. Water available for 951 South Auburn Street, Colfax, California (APN 100-230-027). 

March 25, 2014.  

2 City of Colfax. Memorandum from Jaenalyn Jarvis Killian to Joshua Simon and Dan Biswas, Simon CRE Raylan 

LLC. January 9, 2014. 

3 Caltrans. California Scenic Highway Mapping System, Placer County. 

www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LandArch/scenic_highways/. 















Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 12 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

communities (black oak/canyon live oak woodlands) and associated wildlife habitat through removal of 

habitat. This site is an infill parcel, however, being surrounded by I-80 on the east, residential 

development to the west, and commercial development to the north and south (with a few intervening 

undeveloped parcels). Wildlife habitat values are therefore low, and the project will not have significant 

impacts on reduced wildlife populations.  

 

The project is anticipated to remove 15 to 16 oak trees according to the project biologist. To mitigate this 

impact, Mitigation Measure 4A is recommended, which will require one-for-one oak tree replanting 

either onsite or on other suitable land within the City of Colfax, as required by Municipal Code Chapter 

17.110.050. The retention of the western one-quarter of the site in oak woodland will also minimize 

impacts associated with oak tree removal. 

 

Wildlife impacts may be greater if work begins in the spring, when many species are breeding or nesting, 

including protected raptor and migratory bird species. Appropriate scheduling of the work and 

preconstruction surveys are therefore required to ensure that impacts to nesting birds are minimized to the 

maximum extent possible. Mitigation Measure 4B requires a nesting survey prior to any disturbance to 

either offset or avoid impacts to potentially nesting raptors and migratory birds, and Mitigation Measure 

4C requires the avoidance of mature trees and other native vegetation to the maximum extent practicable. 

According to the biological resources assessment prepared for this project, there are no streams or active 

water features that are subject to jurisdiction by regulatory agencies such as California Department of 

Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, and no sensitive habitats other than the oak 

woodlands previously discussed. The site is an infill development very close to Interstate 80 and as such 

is not considered a sensitive site for wildlife movement.   

 

With implementation of the identified mitigation measures, potential impacts on special-status species 

and riparian, wetland, or other sensitive natural habitats will be less than significant with mitigation. 

 

Impact Discussion 4g:  The proposed project could temporarily result in light sources, noise, and human 

activity, but these activities would occur in areas of commercial uses that are currently subject to light, 

noise, and moderate levels of human activity. Additionally, construction activities generally occur during 

daylight hours. Daytime noise impacts on wildlife from construction activities are not anticipated to be 

substantial because most activities would occur near existing structures where noise and activity already 

commonly occurs during the day. Therefore, this impact would be less than significant.  

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Mitigation Measure 4A: Mitigate for oak tree removal. An equal number of trees will be planted as 

those to be removed. Tree selection will be from the "Permitted Species" list found on pages 11-12 of the 

biological resources report dated January 12, 2015, and if possible they will be incorporated into the 

landscape of the store facility. If not possible, then trees will be planted in public places within the City 

Limits of Colfax as approved by the City Manager. Replacement trees shall range from one-gallon to 

forty-eight-inch-box container sizes mixed to create a natural horizon line. A mix of tree species is 

preferred (rather than planting the same species throughout the project) to achieve a more natural, native 

appearance. Trees shall be irrigated and maintained by any and all subsequent owners for a minimum 

period of three years after installation in accordance with the Colfax maintenance requirements:  

 

1. Deposit with the City a maintenance bond, cash, letter of credit or its equivalent, in an amount 

equal to one-half the market value of landscaping and irrigation guaranteeing the proper care, 

treatment and maintenance of landscaping for a period of three years; or  

2. Execute an agreement and equitable lien in an amount equal to the full market value of the 

landscaping and irrigation with the City, guaranteeing the lien shall cause a written letter of 

notification by the City to the owner of the real property within ten days that the City will 

ITEM 5A
26 of 71







Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 15 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

Measures 5A, which requires construction work to stop and appropriate steps taken if cultural resources 

are discovered. 

 

Mitigation Measures  
 

Mitigation Measure 5A:  Halt work and contact the appropriate agencies if cultural resources are 

discovered during project construction.  All equipment operators and employees involved in any form 

of ground disturbance shall be advised of the remote possibility of encountering subsurface cultural 

resources.  If such resources are encountered or suspected, work shall be halted immediately and the 

Colfax Planning Department shall be contacted.  A professional archaeologist shall be retained by the 

developer and consulted to access any discoveries and develop appropriate management 

recommendations for archaeological resource treatment. If bones are encountered and appear to be 

human, California Law requires that the Placer County Coroner and the Native American Heritage 

Commission be contacted and, if Native American resources are involved, Native American 

Organizations and individuals recognized by the City shall be notified and consulted about any plans for 

treatment.  A note to this effect shall be included on the grading and construction plans for each phase of 

this project. 

 

Timing: Prior to issuance of the grading permits  

Responsible Agency:  City Planning Department 

 

 

6. GEOLOGY / SOILS  

 

Existing Setting:   Soils within the City of Colfax include Mariposa-Josephine-Sites, Maymen-Josephine, 

Cohasset-Aiken-McCarthy, and Dubakella-Rock, all undulating to steep, well-drained soils. According to 

the City of Colfax General Plan, ñthese soils are stable and present no extreme limitations for construction 

if proper methods are implemented and compliance with the Colfax Municipal Code requirements are 

followedò in order to minimize soil erosion and enhance slope stability. The average slope on the site is 

approximately 20-30 percent. Drainage flows through the site in a west to east direction toward South 

Auburn Street, and then south down South Auburn Street.  

 

Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant 

with Mitigation 

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

a. Result in exposure to or production of unstable 

earth conditions such as landslides, earthquakes, 

liquefaction, soil creep, mudslides, ground failure 

(including expansive, compressible, collapsible 

soils), or similar hazards? 

   V 

b. Result in disruption, displacement, 

compaction, or over-covering of the soil by cuts, 

fills, or extensive grading? 
 V   

c. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 

unstable, or that would become unstable as a result 

of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-

site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, 

liquefaction or collapse? 

 V   

d. Have soils incapable of adequately supporting 

the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater 

disposal systems where sewers are not available 

for the disposal of wastewater? 

   V 

e. Result in any increase in wind or water 

erosion of soils, on or off the site? 
 V   

ITEM 5A



Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 16 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant 

with Mitigation 

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

f. Changes in siltation, deposition or erosion, 

which may modify the channel of a river, or 

stream, or the bed any bay, inlet or lake? 
 V   

g. Result in excessive grading on slopes of over 

30 percent?  
   V 

 

Impact Discussion 6a:  Ground or fault rupture is generally defined as the displacement that occurs along 

the surface of a fault during an earthquake.  The Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act was adopted 

in 1972 to prevent the construction of buildings in areas where active faults have surface expression. 

Placer County does not contain any Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zones, and there are no known faults 

that cross through the project site.10 Due to the absence of any active faults onsite, the probability of 

damage due to surface rupture is low. There would be no impact associated with seismic activity, and no 

mitigation is required.   

 

Impact Discussion 6b, c, e, f:  Given that the project site has a 20 to 30 percent slopes, project 

construction activities associated with building the proposed parking lot, building pad, and surface and 

subsurface infrastructure and storm drainage system will necessitate the use of extensive cuts and fills. 

Cut soil will total 16,775 cubic yards and fill soil will total 581 cubic yards, with a total of 16,194 cubic 

yards of soil hauled off the site. The maximum cut proposed by the applicant is an approximately 36-foot 

cut with 1.5:1 slopes. A 27-foot retaining wall is proposed on the west side of the parcel. Cuts and fills 

may also be needed to facilitate surface drainage, trenching for the installation and connection of 

underground utilities, and other subsurface disturbances. Given the scope of grading, the project will 

subject to the requirement of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) from the Central Valley 

Regional Water Quality Control Board. Mitigation Measure 6A requires compliance with excavation 

slope standards. As construction activities during the wet weather season can result in adverse erosion 

impacts, Mitigation Measure 6B is recommended to limit any grading activities during the wet weather 

periods in order to prevent soil erosion, and Mitigation Measure 6C is recommended to require the 

erosion control measures to ensure the disturbed areas are stabilized during construction. Comments on 

the project from the City Building Department require grading and improvements to be implemented in 

accordance with City of Colfax standards, the Placer County Land Development Manual, and the Placer 

County Storm Water Management Manual.11 With these measures, as well as implementation of 

Mitigation Measures 6A and 6B, impacts from excavation would be less than significant with mitigation.  

 

Impact Discussion 6d: The project will be on City sewer and does not require on-site soils for sewage 

disposal. There would be no impact. 

 

Impact Discussion 6g:  Slopes on the site range from rolling to steep, with an average slope of 

approximately 20 to 30 percent.  Therefore, there will be a less than significant impact related to 

excessive grading on slopes over 30 percent.  

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Mitigation 6A: Comply with excavation slope standards. Prior to issuance of grading the excavation 

slopes steeper than 2:1 will not be permitted unless accompanied by the recommendation of a 

                                                      

10 State of California Department of Conservation. Search for Regulatory Maps. 

www.quake.ca.gov/gmaps/WH/regulatorymaps.htm. 

11 City of Colfax. Memorandum from Jaenalyn Jarvis Killian to Joshua Simon and Dan Biswas, Simon CRE Raylan 

LLC. January 9, 2014. 

ITEM 5A
30 of 71



Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 17 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

geotechnical engineer. The applicant shall provide a geotechnical report from a license geotechnical 

engineer for the retaining wall per Section 15.30.046 of the City Code. In addition to the requirements in 

Section 15.30.048 of City Code, the report must address stability of proposed cut slopes, recommendation 

for parking lot section, and recommendation for public roadway improvement section including R-Value 

of existing soil in widened roadway area. Landscape slopes along the street shall not exceed 3:1. Level 

areas having a minimum width of one (1) foot shall be required at the toe and top of said slopes. The 

Geotechnical Engineer shall provide certification to the City that all grading work has been placed and 

compacted in compliance with the improvement plans and geotechnical report.  

 

Timing: Prior to issuance of the grading permits 

Responsible Agency:  City Engineering Department 

 

Mitigation Measure 6B:  Limit the grading season.  Grading plans shall include the time of year for 

construction activities. No grading shall occur between November 1 and May 1. If improvements will not 

be completed by October 15, or are scheduled to start prior to April 15, a winterization plan must also be 

prepared in accordance with City requirements. One hundred percent (100%) bonding or other security 

shall be provided to assure implementation of the winterization plan. 

 

Timing: Prior to issuance of the grading permits  

Responsible Agency:  City Engineering Department 

 

Mitigation Measure 6C: Prepare and implement an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan.  Prior to 

issuance of grading permits or improvement plans for all project-related grading including road 

construction and drainage improvements, said permits or plans shall incorporate, at a minimum, the 

following erosion and sediment control measures: 

 

1.  During construction, Best Management Practices (BMPs) for temporary erosion control shall be 

implemented to control any pollutants that could potentially affect the quality of storm water 

discharges from the site. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) shall be prepared in 

accordance with California State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) requirements. This 

SWPPP includes the implementation of BMP's for Erosion Control, Sediment Control, Tracking 

Control, Wind Erosion Control, Waste Management and Materials Pollution Control. 

2.  If applicable, topsoil shall be removed and stockpiled for later reuse prior to excavation activities. 

Topsoil shall be identified by the soil-revegetation specialist who will identify both extent and 

depth of the topsoil to be removed. 

3.  Upon completion of grading, stockpiled topsoil shall be combined with wood chips, compost and 

other soil amendments for placement on all graded areas. Revegetation shall consist of native 

seed mixes only. The primary objectives of the soil amendments and revegetation is to create site 

conditions that keep sediment on site, produce a stable soil surface, resist erosion and are 

aesthetically similar to the surrounding native forest ecosystem. Geo-fabrics, jutes or other mats 

may be used in conjunction with revegetation and soil stabilization. 

 

Timing: Prior to issuance of the grading permits or improvement plans 

Responsible Agency:  City Engineering Department 

 

 

7. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

 

Existing Setting:  Greenhouse gases (GHGs) are those gases that trap heat in the atmosphere. GHGs are 

emitted by natural and industrial processes, and the accumulation of GHGs in the atmosphere regulates 

the earthôs temperature. GHGs that are regulated by the State and/or EPA are carbon dioxide (CO2), 

methane (CH4), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), sulfur hexafluoride (SF6) and 

ITEM 5A





Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 19 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

systems, passive solar, energy efficient lighting, water conservation and landscaping, and many other 

design and operational measures that can reduce GHG emissions. Additionally, the Placer County APCD 

has also prepared a CEQA Handbook that includes mitigation measures for GHGs. As such, Mitigation 

Measure 7A is recommended. With implementation of the mitigation measures described above and 

shown below, short- and long-term operational impacts related to CO2 emissions are anticipated to be less 

than significant with mitigation. 

 

Mitigation Measures 
 

Mitigation 7A: Comply with energy-efficiency standards. Prior to issuance of building permits, the 

design of the project shall comply with the following standards:  

 

1. The floor plans and/or exterior elevations submitted in conjunction with the Building Permit 

application shall show that the project includes energy-efficient lighting (both indoor and 

outdoor).  

2. The floor plans and/or exterior elevations submitted in conjunction with the Building Permit 

application shall show that the project includes an energy-efficient AC unit which exceeds the 

SEER ratio by a minimum of two points at the time of building permit issuance.  

3. The plans submitted in conjunction with the Building Permit application shall show the project 

includes HVAC duct sealing and that the ductwork shall be pressure balanced prior to the 

issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  

4. The floor plans and/or exterior elevations submitted in conjunction with the Building Permit 

application shall show that the project shall include an energy efficient heating system.  

5. The plans submitted in conjunction with the Building Permit application shall show that the 

project shall only utilize programmable thermostat timers.  

6. The plans submitted in conjunction with the Building Permit application shall show that the 

project shall only utilize low-flow water fixtures such as low-flow toilets, faucets, showers, etc.  

7. The applicant shall only show energy-efficient lighting for all street, parking, and area lighting 

associated with the project, including all on-site and off-site lighting. 

 

Timing: Prior to issuance of the building permits and improvement plans 

Responsible Agency:  City Building Department 

 

 

8. HAZARDS / HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

 

Existing Setting:  The property is not within or adjacent to any hazardous materials sites compiled 

pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.512, and is not located on an abandoned solid waste disposal 

site known to the City. The project area is within a Local Responsibility Area (LRA) Very High Fire 

Hazard Severity Zone for wildland fire (CalFire 2008).13 

 

   Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant 

with 

Mitigation  

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

a. Create a significant hazard to the public or the 

environment through the routine transport, use, or 

disposal of hazardous materials? 

  V  

                                                      

12 Department of Toxic Substances Control, Envirostor Database. www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public. 

13 CalFire. Wildland Hazard and Building Codes. Placer County Fire Hazard Severity Zone Map, Local 

Responsibility Area (recommended 12/2008). www.fire.ca.gov/fire_prevention/fhsz_maps_placer.php. 

ITEM 5A





Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 21 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

Impact Discussion 8d:  The proposed project site is not included on a list of hazardous materials sites 

compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, will not create a significant 

hazard to the public or the environment and will have no impact.  No mitigation is required. 

 

Impact Discussion 8e-f:  The proposed project would not result in a safety hazard for people residing or 

working in the project area. This project would also not impact safety policies in effect for lands adjacent 

to an airport as it is not within two miles of a public airport. Therefore, there would be no impact related 

to safety of the public in the project area.   

 

Impact Discussion 8g:  The proposed project will not alter any allowable residential density in the nearby 

area, or change any of the existing road networks or alter any existing emergency evacuation plans. 

Additionally, the City Fire Department has reviewed the project proposal and did not comment on any 

adverse impacts to emergency response or evacuation plans. Measures provided by the Fire Department 

would result in safer conditions in the event of a fire, including safe emergency access, better connection 

to water for fire extinguishment, and building sprinklering. The proposed project would not impair or 

physically interfere with the adopted emergency response and evacuation plans, and any potential adverse 

impacts would be less than significant.  

 

Impact Discussion 8h: CalFire maps the project site, and all of the City of Colfax, within a Local 

Responsibility Area Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone. However, the site is surrounded by developed 

lots to the west, Interstate 80 to east, and previously disturbed parcels to the north and south, so the threat 

of wildfire has been reduced due to the developed nature of the surroundings. Additionally, the project is 

within the City of Colfax and CalFire jurisdiction and as such, will be subject to review by the Placer 

County Fire Protection Planning Department under contract with the City of Colfax. With additional 

measures provided by the Colfax Fire Department as shown in the letter from the City of Colfax to the 

applicant dated January 9, 201414 (including fire sprinklers, fire hydrants and close hydrant placement, 

minimum fire flow of 1,500 gallons per minute, fire department access to the structure, and visible 

addressing), impacts regarding fire safety and prevention are expected to be at a less than significant 

level, and the project would not adversely expose unexpected volumes of people or structures to possible 

wild land fires.  

 

 

9. HYDROLOGY / WATER QUALITY 

 

Existing Setting:  The property is not within a floodplain, nor is it near a floodplain and drainage on the 

property flows north to south. There is no known surface drainage occurring on this property site. There is 

an existing underground storm drain running under the northeast edge of the property that project 

construction will not impinge upon. At the front of the property, but offsite, is a drainage ditch which runs 

parallel to South Auburn Street and directly adjacent to the property's east boundary. Existing Placer 

County Water Agency infrastructure allows for a connection from the waterline along South Auburn 

Street. All treated water services are metered. Treated water is also available for fire protection purposes.  

 

Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant 

with Mitigation  

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

a. Violate any water quality standards or waste 

discharge requirements? 
  V  

                                                      

14 City of Colfax. Memorandum from Jaenalyn Jarvis Killian to Joshua Simon and Dan Biswas, Simon CRE Raylan 

LLC. January 9, 2014. 

ITEM 5A
35 of 71



Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 22 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant 

with Mitigation  

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

b. Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 

interfere substantially with groundwater recharge 

such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer 

volume or a lowering of the local groundwater table 

level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing 

nearby wells would drop to a level, which would not 

support existing land uses or planned uses for which 

permits have been granted)? 

   V 

c. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 

of the site or area, including through the alteration 

of the course of a stream or river, in a manner that 

would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or 

off-site? 

  V  

d. Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 

of the site or area, including through the alteration 

of the course of a stream or river, or substantially 

increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a 

manner, which would result in flooding on- or off-

site? 

  V  

e. Create or contribute to runoff water which 

would exceed the capacity of existing or planned 

storm water drainage systems or provide substantial 

additional sources of polluted runoff? 

  V  

f. Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?   V  

g. Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard 

area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard Boundary 

or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard 

delineation map? 

   V 

h. Place within a 100-year flood hazard area 

structures that would impede or redirect flood 

flows? 

   V 

i. Expose people or structures to a significant risk 

of loss, injury or death involving flooding, including 

flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 

   V 

j. Create inundation by mudflow?    V 

 

Impact Discussion 9a: All project grading activities will require a City grading permit, and construction 

activities will require a Construction Storm Water General Permit, consistent with Construction General 

Permit Order No. 2009-009-DWQ issued by the State Water Resources Control Board, to address storm 

water runoff since soil disturbance will exceed one acre. The permit will address clearing, grading, 

grubbing, and disturbances to the ground, such as stockpiling, or excavation.  The permit will also require 

the developer to prepare and implement a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) with the 

intent of keeping all soil erosion from moving off site into receiving waters. The SWPPP includes Best 

Management Practices to prevent construction pollutants from entering storm water runoff. Mitigation 

Measure 6C is also required in Section 6 of this Initial Study to ensure the project grading will conform 

to State Water Resources Control Board standards and in doing so will ensure the project will result in 

less than significant impacts. 

 

Impact Discussion 9b: The proposed project would not directly or indirectly result in the construction of 

uses that would utilize groundwater supplies, but would be served by public water from Placer County 

Water Agency. Therefore, there would be no impact related to depletion of groundwater supplies or 

interference with groundwater recharge.  

 

ITEM 5A
36 of 71







Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 25 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

ordinance. Parking requirements are discussed in the Traffic section of this Initial Study. Lighting, 

landscaping, signs, and architectural design are discussed in the Aesthetics section of this Initial Study.  

 

The Building Department will require compliance with Chapter 17.122, California State-Mandated Water 

Efficient Landscape Regulations. Impacts to trees and consistency with the Tree Preservation Guidelines 

(Chapter 17.110 of the Colfax Municipal Code) are discussed in the Biological Resources section of this 

Initial Study. 

 

The project will be required to be consistent with the Cityôs Municipal Code prior to project approval 

and/or construction, as noted in the letter from the City to the applicant, dated January 9, 2014. With 

implementation of measures presented in other applicable sections of this Initial Study as noted above, 

this impact is therefore considered less than significant.  

 

Impact Discussion 10g: The proposed project is surrounded on the east and west by commercially-zoned 

land and on the south by Interstate 80. The project site is situated immediately east of the Mink Creek 

subdivision, a residential community, but given the surrounding uses the project would not disrupt or 

divide the physical arrangement of any established community, and no impact would occur. 

 

 

11. MINERAL RESOURCES 

 

Existing Setting:  The project area is not mapped within a Mineral Resource Zone (MRZ), or area of 

known valuable mineral deposits.16 

 

Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant 

with Mitigation 

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

a. Result in the loss of availability of a known 

mineral resource that would be of value to the 

region and the residents of the state? 
   V 

b. Result in the loss of availability of a locally 

important mineral resource recovery site delineated 

on a local general plan, specific plan or other land 

use plan? 

   V 

 

Impact Discussion 11 a-b:  Because the proposed project is not mapped within a known mineral resource 

area or MRZ and would not change existing land uses on the project site, there would be no impact to 

mineral resources.  

 

 

12. NOISE 

 

Existing Setting:  J.C. Brennan & Associated conducted a noise study of the project site and the proposed 

uses to quantify the existing ambient noise and evaluate impacts resulting from the proposed project. J.C. 

Brennan conducted continuous 24-hour noise level measurements near the west property line of the 

project site on November 18th, 2014.  The primary noise source is roadway traffic on lnterstate-80. 

Average existing noise levels are shown in the table below:17 
 

                                                      

16 Placer County. Regional University Specific Plan, Draft Environmental Impact Report, December 2007. Chapter 

6.6 Geology, Soils, and Seismicity.  

17 J.C. Brennan & Associates. Colfax Dollar General Environmental Noise Analysis. November 19, 2014.  

39 of 71









Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 29 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

Impact Discussion 14a.1-5: The proposed commercial building would not result in a new substantial need 

for additional schools, parks, and police protection because it would not result in increased population. 

The project will be conditioned by CalFire and the City of Colfax Fire Department to provide mitigation 

for structural fire prevention needs, such as a fire sprinkler system, a smoke detection system, fire 

protection fees, and fire flow requirements and hydrants. Therefore, the proposed project would have a 

less than significant impact related to these issues. 

 

 

15. RECREATION 

 

Existing Setting:  No recreational facilities occur onsite or in close proximity to the project area. 

 

Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant with 

Mitigation 

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

a. Increase the use of existing neighborhood and 

regional parks or other recreational facilities such 

that substantial physical deterioration of the facility 

would occur or be accelerated? 

   V 

b. Include recreational facilities or require the 

construction or expansion of recreational facilities 

that might have an adverse physical effect on the 

environment? 

   V 

c. Conflict with established recreation uses of the 

area, including biking, equestrian and/or hiking 

trails? 

   V 

 

Impact Discussion 15a-c:  As a commercial project, the project would not result in development that 

would affect recreational uses or increase demand for recreational uses. The project proposes the 

construction of a Dollar General retail store. Therefore, the proposed project would have no impact 

related to these issues. 

 

 

16. TRANSPORTATION / CIRCULATION 

 

Existing Setting:  The project site is located west of Auburn Street between Whitcomb Avenue and Mink 

Creek Drive in the City of Colfax. Existing Level of Service (LOS) at nearby intersections is as follows:  

 
Table 16-1 

Existing Level of Service at Nearby Intersections 

Intersection LOS ï AM LOS ï PM 

South Auburn Street at Whitcomb Avenue B B 

South Auburn Street at Mink Creek Drive A A 

 

South Auburn Street has an existing Level of Service of A. The City of Colfax General Plan establishes 

LOS C as the service standard for City intersections and roadways. 19 As shown in Table 16-1, existing 

conditions meet the Cityôs service standard.  

 

                                                      

19 City of Colfax. General Plan 2020. September 22, 1998. 

43 of 71





Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 31 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

The traffic analysis concludes that the increase in trip volumes from the proposed project is not 

significant. While the project would contribute incrementally to increased traffic during the operational 

phase of the project, there would be a less than significant impact on public road maintenance.  

 

Impact Discussion 16c: The Cityôs parking standards require a minimum of 18 parking spaces for the 

proposed project (1 space per 500 sf of gross floor area for ñGeneral Retailò development).21 The project 

applicant proposes 31 stalls for this store prototype, including 4 clean-air vehicle stalls and 2 ADA stalls, 

and will therefore be in compliance with the minimum number of parking stalls required by the City.  

 

Furthermore, Kunzman Associates prepared a parking analysis for the project site. To quantify the actual 

parking demand for this particular type of project, parking surveys were conducted at three similar Dollar 

General locations to determine the maximum number of occupied parking spaces on weekdays and 

weekends. The study found that the maximum peak parking demand was for 13 stalls. Based upon this 

evidence, adequate parking is expected to be available for the project as designed, and there will be no 

impact associated with parking demand. Impacts related to parking would be less than significant. 

 

Impact Discussion 16d,e,g,i: The proposed project would not result in the development of uses that would 

substantially increase traffic, as discussed above, or that would rely on transit services. However, the 

project would be required to pay its fair share of traffic mitigation fees for trips generated by the project, 

as determined by the Engineering Department. The project would not conflict with rideshare programs or 

other policies supporting alternative transportation, and there would be a less than significant impact 

related to these issues.  

 

Impact Discussion 16f:  The proposed project would not impact airport operations or other travel patterns 

such as waterborne and rail systems as there are none within the vicinity of the project. Therefore, there 

would be no impact.  

 

 

17. UTILITIES / SERVICE SYSTEMS 

 

Existing Setting:  Electricity is available to the project site from Pacific Gas & Electric, and propane is 

available from private vendors to supply on-site storage if needed. Public water is anticipated to be 

available to this property by Placer County Water Agency. Solid waste generated either during the 

development of the site or after occupancy, is processed at the Western Regional Sanitary Landfill, which 

is maintained by the Western Placer Waste Management Authority. There are a number of wireless 

telephone services available in the Colfax area but with variable coverage depending upon the carrier. 

Sewage treatment and disposal would occur via the City of Colfax wastewater treatment plant.  

 

Would the proposed project: 
Potentially 

Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 

Significant 

with Mitigation 

Less Than 

Significant 

Impact 

No Impact 

a. Result in a need for the extension of electrical 

power or natural gas? 
  V  

b. Require the construction of new water or 

wastewater treatment facilities or expansion of 

existing facilities, the construction of which could 

cause significant environmental effects? 

  V  

c. Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of 

the applicable Regional Water Quality Control 

Board? 

  V  

                                                      

21 City of Colfax. Municipal Code, Sec. 17.108.040, ñGeneral Retailò standard. 









Dollar Generalï DRP-SP-01-14 35 of 36 

March 5, 2015 

 

APPENDIX A: Location Map 
 



APPENDIX B: Site Plan 

 

50 of 71



 

1 of 9 
 

Appendix C: Mitigation Monitoring Plan ς Colfax Dollar General DRP-SP-01-14 

Impact(s) Mitigation Measure Responsible 
Agency 

Timing 

AESTHETICS 
 Landscape plan doesn’t 

comply with Municipal 
Code 17.108 to landscape 
unused right-of-way 

 Placer County Water 
Agency has indicated that 
drought declaration may 
be in place that will 
forestall new landscaping 

Mitigation Measure 1A: Comply with City of Colfax Municipal Code requirements for 
landscaping.  Project site landscaping shall comply with all the requirements of the City of 
Colfax Municipal Code, including but not limited to the following: 
 
 All unused right-of-way between the public street and the parking lot shall be 

landscaped and maintained by the property owner. (17.108.045) 
 Landscaping shall consider conservation of water resources through the efficient use 

of irrigation, appropriate plant materials (i.e. appropriate plant zones), and regular 
maintenance of landscaped areas. (17.116.020) 

 All landscaping and irrigation shall be maintained by any and all subsequent owners 
for a minimum period of three years after installation. The developer shall comply 
with either (i) or (ii) of the following provisions and shall comply with (iii): 
(17.116.020) 
 
i. Deposit with the city a maintenance bond, cash, letter of credit, or its equivalent, 

in an amount equal to one-half the market value of landscaping and irrigation 
guaranteeing the proper care, treatment and maintenance of landscaping for a 
period of three years; or  

ii. Execute an agreement and equitable lien in an amount equal to the full market 
value of the landscaping and irrigation with the city, guaranteeing the 
maintenance thereof during a three-year period. Default of such agreement or 
lien shall cause written letter of notification by the city, to the owner of said real 
property within ten (10) days that the city will perform or have performed by a 
reputable landscaper any and all maintenance work it deems necessary and 
bring legal action against the owner for the full cost of such maintenance work, 
or foreclose such equitable lien as provided by law; and 

iii. Prior to the expiration of the three year maintenance guarantee period and return 
of the security, the property owner shall maintain, replace or restore all 
deficient landscaping. Landscaping and irrigation shall be installed prior to 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy by the chief building official. 

 
The applicant shall comply with this measure prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit 
for the proposed structure. If new landscaping is prohibited by the Placer County Water 
Agency at that time, the applicant shall install the landscaping at the earliest opportunity 

City Planning 
Department 

Prior to issuance of 
certificate of 
occupancy  

51 of 71







 

4 of 9 
 

Impact(s) Mitigation Measure Responsible 
Agency 

Timing 

grading and construction plans for this project: 
2. If tree removal must occur during the nesting season, an approved biologist shall 

conduct surveys for nesting raptors and migratory birds within 7 days prior to any 
grading or construction activities during the breeding season (March 1 – August 
31). An additional survey may be required if periods of construction inactivity 
(e.g., gaps of activity during grading, vegetation removal) exceed a period of two 
weeks, an interval during which bird species, in the absence of human or 
construction-related disturbances, may establish a nesting territory and initiate 
egg laying and incubation. 

3. Should any active nests or breeding areas be discovered, a buffer zone (protected 
area surrounding the nest) and monitoring plan, if needed, shall be developed. A 
buffer zone of a quarter-mile (1,320 feet) shall be established. Nest locations shall 
be mapped and submitted along with a report stating the survey results, to the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and the City of Colfax Planning 
Department within one week of survey completion.  A qualified wildlife biologist 
shall monitor the progression of reproductive states of any active nests until a 
determination is made that nestlings have fledge and that a sufficient time for 
fledging dispersal has elapsed; construction activities shall be prohibited with in 
the buffer zone until such determination is made. If construction must occur 
during the time the nest is occupied, the biologist shall consult with the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife to determine the most appropriate course of 
action. 

The project has the potential 
to impact oak groves outside 
the development footprint if 
the groves are not 
adequately protected 

Mitigation Measure 4C: Protect oak groves during construction. Preserved oak trees 
(grove) above the 2,350 elevation shall be retained in their natural state and no irrigation 
or other disturbances shall occur within this oak tree community. The following mitigation 
measures will be implemented during and prior to commencement of construction 
activities in order to avoid potential direct harm to the retained oak community above the 
2,350 elevation. These measures will also minimize indirect impacts to the retained oak 
tree grove following construction. Additional best management practices are also included 
herein.  
 

 Establish the grove as Environmentally Sensitive Areas (ESAs) during all phases of 
construction. The ESA boundaries shall be established at the 2,350 feet elevation 
line of the parcel. The grove shall be protected with high-visibility fencing placed 
at least one foot outside the dripline prior to commencement of construction.  
The fencing should be four-feet high and bright orange with steel t-posts spaced 
no greater than 8 feet apart.  

 Do not disturb the Protected Root Zone (PRZ) of trees within the grove. The PRZ is 

City Planning 
Department 

Prior to issuance of 
the grading permits 
and during 
construction per field 
inspection 
 

54 of 71







 

7 of 9 
 

Impact(s) Mitigation Measure Responsible 
Agency 

Timing 

4. Geo-fabrics, jutes or other mats may be used in conjunction with revegetation and 
soil stabilization. 

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
The project will 
incrementally contribute to 
greenhouse gas emissions 

Mitigation 7A: Comply with energy-efficiency standards. Prior to issuance of building 
permits, the design of the project shall comply with the following standards:  
 

1. The floor plans and/or exterior elevations submitted in conjunction with the 
Building Permit application shall show that the project includes energy-efficient 
lighting (both indoor and outdoor).  

2. The floor plans and/or exterior elevations submitted in conjunction with the 
Building Permit application shall show that the project includes an energy-efficient 
AC unit which exceeds the SEER ratio by a minimum of two points at the time of 
building permit issuance.  

3. The plans submitted in conjunction with the Building Permit application shall show 
the project includes HVAC duct sealing and that the ductwork shall be pressure 
balanced prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  

4. The floor plans and/or exterior elevations submitted in conjunction with the 
Building Permit application shall show that the project shall include an energy-
efficient heating system.  

5. The plans submitted in conjunction with the Building Permit application shall show 
that the project shall only utilize programmable thermostat timers.  

6. The plans submitted in conjunction with the Building Permit application shall show 
that the project shall only utilize low-flow water fixtures such as low-flow toilets, 
faucets, showers, etc.  

7. The applicant shall only show energy-efficient lighting for all street, parking, and 
area lighting associated with the project, including all on-site and off-site lighting. 

City Building 
Department 

Prior to issuance of 
the building permits 
and improvement 
plans 

NOISE 
Short-term construction-
related noise impacts at 
nearby sensitive receptors, 
e.g., residences to west  

Mitigation Measure 12A:  Limit construction work hours to comply with City of Colfax 
standards.  During grading and construction, work hours shall be limited from 6:00 a.m. to 
6:00 p.m. from Monday through Friday; and 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays, Sundays, 
and observed holidays. Prior to issuance of grading and building permits, improvement 
plans shall reflect hours of construction.  

City Building 
Department 

Prior to issuance of 
grading and building 
permits 

 

 

 

ITEM 5A



ITEM 5A
58 of 71





ITEM 5A





ITEM 5A



ITEM 5A















ITEM 5A
70 of 71













 

5 

 

The proposed project would not result in the development of uses that would substantially increase traffic, 
as discussed above, or that would rely on transit services. However, the project would be required to pay 
its fair share of traffic mitigation fees for trips generated by the project, as determined by the City 
Engineering Department. Caltrans has suggested that the impacts of any traffic are mitigated with the fees 
paid, but would like to consider making direct improvements equivalent to the fees.  Staff is discussing 
that possibility with Caltrans. The project would not conflict with rideshare programs or other policies 
supporting alternative transportation.   There would be a less than significant impact related to these 
issues 
 

OTHER CITY DEPARTMENTAL AND INTERESTED OUTSIDE AGENCIES REVIEW: 
The City Engineer reviewed the project plans and provided a number of substantive comments on the 
proposed improvement plans, and the applicant is accommodating requested changes.  The Building and 
Fire Departments have reviewed the initial building plans, with no major issues and all comments to be 
addressed during the Building Permit/ Plan Check process underway concurrently. 
 

The following outside parties were noticed.  Minimal comments were received and are attached.  All 
comments are addressed in the plan review and building permit process with comments not specifically 
addressed by mitigations made conditions of approval of this project.   
 

Caltrans, District 3 
Colfax City Engineer 
Colfax Community Services Director 
Colfax Elementary School District 
Colfax Fire Chief & Marshal 
Colfax High School 
Colfax Sheriff’s Deputy 
Department of Fish & Wildlife Services (CA DFG) 
Pacific Gas & Electric 
Placer County Air Pollution Control District 
Placer County Community Development Resource Agency (Planning Department) 
Placer County Environmental Health Department 
Placer County Flood Control and Water Control District 
Placer County Public Works Department 
Placer County Water Agency 
Placer Union High School District 
Regional Water Quality Control Board 
       State of California State Clearinghouse and Planning Unit  
Recology 
United Auburn Indian Community Tribal Office 
United States Army Corps of Engineers 
United States Post Office 
Verizon Communications 
Wave Broadband 
 

RECOMMENDED FINDINGS: 
Staff and the contract environmental planner find that the although the proposed project could have a 
significant effect on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in 
the project have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent, and recommend that the City 
Council adopt Resolution No. 14-2015: Certifying And Adopting The Negative Declaration for Design 
Review Permit No. DRP-SP-01-14 Dollar General Project. 
 

 

5 of 9





City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution Ο 14-2015 
 

CERTIFYING AND ADOPTING THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
FOR THE DOLLAR GENERAL PROJECT (DRP-SP-01-2014) 

 

Whereas, the City of Colfax received Planning Application DRP-SP-01-2014 for 
design review for the Dollar General Project located at 951 S. Auburn Street in the City of 
#ÏÌÆÁØ ɉÔÈÅ Ȱ0ÒÏÊÅÃÔȱ); and 
 

Whereas, the City prepared an Initial Study consistent with California 
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") Guidelines and determined that a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration ("MND") was required in order to analyze the potential for significant impacts 
of the Project; and 

 

Whereas, based on the Initial Study, the City prepared a MND dated March 5, 2015 
×ÈÉÃÈ ÒÅÆÌÅÃÔÅÄ ÔÈÅ #ÉÔÙȭÓ ÉÎÄÅÐÅÎÄÅÎÔ ÊÕÄÇÍÅÎÔ ÁÎÄ ÁÎÁÌÙÓÉÓ ÏÆ ÔÈÅ ÐÏÔÅÎÔÉÁÌ 
environmental impacts of the Project and which was circulated for public review from 
March 6, 2015 to April 6, 2015; and  

 

Whereas, the City carefully reviewed the MND and all comments received with 
regard to it and the Project and determined that the MND adequately identified and 
ÁÎÁÌÙÚÅÄ ÔÈÅ 0ÒÏÊÅÃÔȭÓ ÅÎÖÉÒÏÎÍÅÎÔÁÌ ÉÍÐÁÃÔÓȟ ÁÎÄ ÔÈÁÔ ÔÈÅ ÃÏÍÍÅÎÔÓ ÄÉÄ ÎÏÔ ÃÏÎÓtitute or 
require substantial revisions to the MND.  On this basis, the City determined that no 
recirculation of the MND was required pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines; and  
 

Whereas, staff reports to the Colfax Planning Commission and City Council, dated 
April 14, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference, described the Project and analyzed 
the draft MND; and 

 

Whereas, the Planning Commission and City Council reviewed the staff reports and 
the draft MND and all related documents at a noticed public meeting on April 22, 2015 at 
which time all interested parties had the opportunity to be heard; and 
 

Whereas, the Mitigated Negative Declaration identifies mitigation measures 
applicable to the Project.  Therefore, a Mitigation Monitoring Plan (MMP) must be adopted 
in conjunction with any Project approval; and 

 

Whereas, a MMP has been prepared as required by CEQA; and 
 

Whereas, the MND and other environmental documents for the Project that 
constitute the record of proceedings for the Project are in the custodial location and 
available for review during normal business hours in the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 
33 S. Main Street,  Colfax, CA 95713. 

7 of 9



Whereas, the Colfax City Council finds as follows: 
 

A. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and made a part of this 
Resolution. 

 

B. The City Council has reviewed and considered the draft MND, comments 
received during the public review period, and all relevant documents in the record 
pertaining to the Project. 

 

C. The MND for the Project adequately describes the environmental impacts of 
the Project.  On the basis of the whole record before it, the Colfax City Council finds that 
there is no substantial evidence that the Project, as mitigated, will have a significant effect 
on the environment beyond those identified in the MND.   

 

D. The MND has been completed in compliance with CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines.    

 

E. The MND is complete and adequate and reflects the Planning Commission's 
ÁÎÄ #ÉÔÙ #ÏÕÎÃÉÌȭÓ independent judgment and analysis as to the environmental effects of 
the Project. 

 

Whereas, the Colfax Planning Commission approved Design Review Permit No. 
DRP-SP-01-2014 for the Dollar General Project located at 951 S. Auburn Street Project in 
the City of Colfax subject to project conditions and findings and recommended that the City 
Council approve and certify the MND 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 
follows: 

1. The Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Dollar General Project located at 
951 S. Auburn in Colfax, CA is approved, adopted, and certified. 

 

2. The City Manager or his designee shall within five days of the adoption of this 
Resolution file a notice of determination with the Clerk of the County of Placer, California in 
accordance with CEQA Guidelines §15075. 
 

Passed and Adopted this 22th day of April 2015 by the following roll call vote: 
 

Ayes:      
Noes:     
Absent:   
Abstain:  

                                                                
___________________________________ 

      Kim Douglass, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 









3 of 9














	00A Agenda
	01D Big Day of Giving
	02A Minutes
	02B Cash Summary Report March 2015
	2015-09 Staff Report Cash Summary Mar 2015
	March Cash Summary Data

	02C Audit-Risk Assessment Committee Update
	Audit Committee Minutes April 2015
	Audit Committee Agenda April 2015

	02D Department of General Services Surplus Property
	Staff Report DGS Surplus Property Program
	DGS Forms and Resolution

	02E Delinquent Sewer
	Staff Report Delinquent Sewer and Garbage - Activities List
	Delinquent Sewer Schedule

	05A Planning Commission Hear Dollar General
	Staff Report for Planning Commission Dollar General DR and MND-rev
	Resolution 13-2015 Planning Commission Dollar General Approval
	Dollar General Elevation Site Landscape
	150417 DollarGeneral-Env. Initial Study Signed
	AppendixC-MMP-rev
	All Comments
	150123 Placer County Dept of Health Design Review
	150310 Comments DG PCWA Complete
	150310 Comments DG PCWA
	150310 Comments DG PCWA Map

	150330 Comments DG Central Valley Water Quality Control Board
	150404 Comments DG Wilde
	150406 Comments DG Caltrans


	05B City Council Hearing Dollar General
	Staff Report for City Council Dollar General CC MND
	Resolution 14-2015 Dollar General Neg Dec Approval
	Notice of Determination #DRP-SP-01-14 (1)

	06A Sheriff Contract Review
	Staff Report Sheriff Contract
	Sheriff Contract Data




